
PERSONNEL AND GENERAL 
PURPOSES SUB-COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 17th July, 2019

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Guildhall



2

PERSONNEL AND GENERAL PURPOSES SUB-COMMITTEE 

Information for Members of the Public

Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access 
to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face 
the Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled 
parking space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground 
floor, which can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility 
and you wish to attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance 
and we will make any necessary arrangements to assist your visit.

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies of 
Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 
preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part 
II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that 
the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to 
public inspection.

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report 
on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and 
providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the 
proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 
attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to 
attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded 
and for any footage to be broadcast or published.  

Please note the Council audio records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are 
published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted 
in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council 
he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to 
the Council’s website. The Chairman of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend 
recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if 
they consider that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any 
statutory provision.

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 
for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 
Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last 
working day before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned 
below.

If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background 
papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, 
film, video or sound recording, please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, Democratic Services 
Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); E-
Mail Address:  committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk.

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 
minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information.

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available 
electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address: 
worcester.gov.uk

mailto:committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk


3

Personnel and General Purposes Sub-Committee
Wednesday, 17 July 2019

Members of the Sub-Committee:-

Chairman: Councillor Louis Stephen (G)
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Marc Bayliss (C) and Councillor Adrian Gregson (L)

Councillor Roger Berry (LCo)
Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C)

Councillor Chris Mitchell (C)
Councillor Joy Squires (L)

C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-Operative

AGENDA

Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)

1. Appointment of Substitutes To receive details of any Members 
appointed to attend the meeting instead of 
a Member of the Sub-Committee.

2. Declarations of Interest To receive any declarations of interest.

3. Public Participation Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be 
allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of 
the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any matter on the 
Agenda or within the remit of the Sub-
Committee.

4. Minutes 
Page(s): 1 - 4

Of the meeting held on 27th February 2019 
to be approved and signed.

5. Employee Benefits Platform 
Page(s): 5 - 10
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Catherine Simcox, 

Human Resources 
Officer
Tel: 01905 
722043

That the Sub-Committee approves of the 
purchase of a Web-Based Employee 
Benefits Platform from SODEXO, including 
the transfer of certain existing benefits to 
SODEXO (namely our Employee Assistance 
Programme, Counselling, Cycle to Work 
Scheme and Child Care Voucher Scheme).



4

6. Employer Supported 
Volunteering Policy 
Page(s): 11 - 22
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Mark Edwards, 

Head of People 
Services
Tel: 01905 
722042

That the Sub-Committee agrees to the 
introduction of an ‘Employer Supported 
Volunteering (ESV) Policy.’

7. Review of Local Conditions 
Page(s): 23 - 38
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Alison Darbyshire, 

HR Operations 
Team Leader
Tel: 01905 
721159

To approve the proposed amendments to 
the Local Conditions.

8. Health and Attendance 
Performance - 2018/19 
Page(s): 39 - 46
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Mark Edwards, 

Head of People 
Services
Tel: 01905 
722042

1. That the Sub-Committee note the 
health and attendance performance for 
the year 2018/19 and actions being 
taken to reduce sickness absence; and

2. That the Sub-Committee note the 
voluntary leavers rate for the year 
2018/19.

9. Any Other Business Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of 
sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration.



PERSONNEL AND GENERAL PURPOSES SUB-COMMITTEE

27th February 2019

Present: Councillor Louis Stephen in the Chair

Councillors Bayliss (Vice-Chairman), Berry, 
Gregson (Vice-Chairman), Mrs L. Hodgson, 
Mitchell and J. Squires

Officers: David Blake, Managing Director
Shane Flynn, Corporate Director –
Finance and Resources
Mark Edwards, Head of People Services
Kevin Moore, Head of Property and Asset 
Management

65 Appointment of Substitutes 

None.

66 Declarations of Interest 

None.

67 Public Participation 

None.

68 Minutes 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 12th December 2018 
be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

69 Health & Safety Policy - Nomination of Lead Member for Health and 
Safety 

At the last meeting, the Sub-Committee agreed the adoption of an updated Health 
and Safety Policy. The Sub-Committee deferred the nomination of a Lead Member 
on Health and Safety until the next meeting

The Corporate Director – Finance and Resources summarised the main 
requirements of the role.

In the ensuing discussion, Members expressed support for the role being 
undertaken by the Chair a Committee. It was proposed and seconded that the 
Chair of this Sub-Committee be nominated to fulfil the role. 

Officers advised that training for Members would be reviewed as part of the 
forthcoming review of the Committee system. 

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee agree to recommend to Council that 
the Chair of Personnel and General Purposes Sub-Committee be 
appointed as Lead Member for Health and Safety, to be appointed at the 
Annual Council meeting in May 2019.

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



27th February 2019 2

70 Purchase of Additional Annual Leave 

The Sub-Committee considered a proposal for a Purchase of Additional Annual 
Leave Policy. The Head of People Services presented the report and explained that 
the ability to buy additional annual leave each year was identified by employees 
as an attractive option at the first round of staff conferences in 2018. The 
proposed Policy had been designed to allow employees to purchase up to 5 
additional days’ leave in each leave year. If approved, the Policy would come into 
effect from 1 April 2019.

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee approve the Purchase of Additional 
Leave Policy.

71 Sickness Absence Management Policy 

The Head of People Services reported that a review of this Policy had revealed 
that it did not explicitly acknowledge a role for Disability Leave.  This is a form of 
reasonable adjustment that recognises that some disabled employees may need 
to attend out patient type appointments and that these should not be treated as 
sickness absences.  The Policy had therefore been amended to incorporate this 
provision.   

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee approve the revised Sickness 
Absence Management Policy.

72 Review of Decision Making on Voluntary Redundancies 

The Sub-Committee had previously expressed some concern about the lack of 
Member involvement in decisions on voluntary redundancies. The Head of People 
Services explained that Officers had therefore reviewed the existing process.

It was recognised that some voluntary redundancies represented a significant 
financial outlay which may have a wider bearing on the Council’s finances. It was 
appropriate therefore for Members to have a clearer oversight of the 
implementation of this policy.  In addition it was understood that the government 
intends to implement the anticipated public sector exit payments cap regulations 
in the autumn of this year and that the cap is likely to be set at £95,000.   

It was therefore proposed that prior to the publication of those regulations any 
voluntary redundancy with total exit costs of more than £95,000 should be 
referred to this Sub-Committee for approval.  All other voluntary redundancies will 
remain as Officer decisions, but will be reported to this Sub-Committee.

A further report would be brought to the Sub-Committee when the full details and 
implementation date for the exit cap are known.

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee agree the proposed changes to the 
Council’s Policy on Voluntary Redundancy Decision Making.

Page 2



27th February 2019 3

73 Annual Safeguarding Update 

The Head of People Services presented an annual update on the Council’s position 
on safeguarding. He highlighted the main points and Officers answered questions 
from Sub-Committee Members.

In the ensuing discussion, reference was made to the position of Lead Member for 
Safeguarding. The Managing Director advised that the position on Lead Members 
and the roles of Member Champions would be incorporated in the forthcoming 
review of the Committee System.

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee note the Council’s progress and 
current position with regard to its safeguarding responsibilities.

74 Any Other Business 

None.

Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 7.35p.m.

Chairman at the meeting on
17th July 2019

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Report to: Personnel and General Purposes Sub-Committee, 17th July 2019

Report of: Head of People Services

Subject: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLATFORM 

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Sub-Committee approves of the purchase of a Web-Based 
Employee Benefits Platform from SODEXO, including the transfer of certain 
existing benefits to SODEXO (namely our Employee Assistance Programme, 
Counselling, Cycle to Work Scheme and Child Care Voucher Scheme).

2. Background

2.1 As part of our People Strategy, the Council is committed to attracting, retaining and 
rewarding excellent people.  

2.2 The Council recognises that we will not have the pay flexibility of other service 
sectors, even with our recently improved pay structure.  One of the ways we can 
overcome this challenge is to improve the quality, scope and accessibility of our full 
range of employee benefits.  This will enable a transition to a total reward approach 
in describing our employment offer, with the ultimate aim of becoming an employer 
of choice in Worcester.

2.3 Our existing Employee benefits are accessed on our intranet site and promoted via 
posters, ITK, occasional communication emails and at new starter inductions.  Up to 
103 front line staff in Environmental Operations have no immediate access to the 
Council Intranet or emails to understand their true benefit offering. However, the 
entire workforce have access to the internet at home or via personal smart devices 
to potentially view a web-based Council benefits platform, on a 24/7 basis.

2.4 Sodexo can provide a web-based employee benefits platform for £11.43 per 
employee per annum.  Based on 310 heads this will be £3,543.30 per annum, with a 
one off set up fee of £450.00.  

2.5 The following neighbouring Councils already use Sodexo’s web-based employee 
benefits platform; Birmingham City Council, Bromsgrove and Redditch Borough 
Councils, Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council and Warwick District Council.

2.6 Employee Assistance Programme (EAP): Our current telephone based provider is 
Optum at £4.77 per person per annum.  Based on 310 employees this amounts to 
£1478.70 per annum.  Contract ends 30th June 2019.

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



2.7 Face to face Counselling: Our current provider is NOSS (via our OH provider) at 
£53.00 per session for face-to-face counselling.  There were 27 employees referred 
for counselling in 2018, each able to take an average of 3 sessions.  This equates to 
a cost of £4,293 if there was a 100% uptake of all sessions approved.  It should be 
noted that the previous costs in Civica were by a previous provider which stopped 
their business and resulted in an increase in costs from £38/session to £53/session 
and so historical costs can be misleading.  This is a Pay As You Go contract.

2.8 Sodexo will include a free of charge and comprehensive Employee Assistance 
Programme with unlimited manager referrals and up to 6 sessions of Face-
to-face Counselling per presenting issue for all employees.  Self referral by 
employees can also be arranged.  As a guide, this would save the Council £5771.00 
per annum.

2.9 Cycle to work scheme: Our current provider is CycleScheme.  We would transfer to 
Sodexo’s in-house scheme at zero cost, for a fully managed scheme with an 
employer administration portal, keeping Council paperwork and process time to a 
minimum.

2.10 Childcare Voucher Scheme: Our current provider is Computershare Services. This 
benefit is now only available if an employee joined on or before 4 October 2018 as 
the government has now launched a direct Tax Free Childcare scheme.  Sodexo 
could transfer our existing membership to their in-house Childcare Vouchers Scheme 
offering a fully managed and secure online E-Voucher, mobile enabled option.  There 
will be no transfer costs and transferred members will retain their tax/NI savings.

2.11 Employee Discount Scheme: Our current provider is CSSC.  This is a voluntary 
membership scheme of £47.40 per annum for employees (zero cost to the Council), 
to obtain savings across retailers, cinema and free entry to English Heritage sites.  
We have less than 10% take up by staff.  Sodexo will offer an in-house Employee 
Discounts Scheme free of charge to all staff, including over 6000 high street, 
cinema, holiday, technology and local offers.  Existing CSSC members could 
approach English Heritage direct to join at £48 per annum if they only want to retain 
this feature.  This therefore provides a discount scheme for all employees at no cost 
to either the employee or ourselves (integral to the package the costs of which can 
be covered as part of the EAP/Counselling benefits.

2.12 Sodexo will provide an employee helpdesk for all council staff, with specialist support 
for their in-house discount schemes, travel concierge schemes and salary sacrifice 
schemes. This will enable direct and immediate response to benefit enquiries, freeing 
up administration time for People Services.

2.13 Our existing benefits such as discounted parking, the Orchard Healthcare plan, the 
purchase of annual leave, our volunteering policy, flexible working, free flu 
vaccinations, discounted sport and leisure and our Learning Lounge can also be 
added on this platform, providing a seamless, integrated package of benefits

2.14 There is an option in the future to incorporate a Car Salary Sacrifice Scheme which 
will have no up front costs or management fees and will offer significant staff 
retention opportunities, whilst providing substantial savings to the Council in the 
form of NI and Employer Pension contribution savings. The scheme can also help 
reduce the Council’s carbon footprint and support a green agenda.  This is a complex 
offer which needs further research and consideration and linking to wider work on 
sustainability and reducing vehicle emissions.   

Page 6



3. Preferred Option 

3.1 That the committee approves the purchase of a Web-Based Employee Benefits 
Platform from Sodexo and their Free Employee Assistance Programme, their Free 
Employee Discounts Scheme, their Childcare Scheme and their Cycle to Work 
Scheme.

Sodexo (a direct contract):  A two year contractual commitment will be 
£7,086.60, with a one off set up fee of £450.00 with a three year 

Alternative Options Considered

3.2 That we stay with our existing provision, continuing via intranet access

The Council has the opportunity to invest in a web-based Employee Benefits platform 
that can offer direct, immediate access to all staff, with a specialist employee 
helpdesk.  The existing cost of just our wellbeing provision (OPTUM and NOSS) could 
instead purchase the Sodexo platform, which will incorporate a more comprehensive 
EAP including unlimited face to face counselling free of change, saving approximately 
£4000 per annum.

3.3 That we utilise an ESPO Framework for purchase of the Sodexo Benefits 
Platform. 

3.4 Sodexo was recommended by Bromsgrove and Redditch Council, who had 
undertaken a comprehensive review of this market and opted for Sodexo via the 
ESPO Framework 319_19 agreement.   This could represent a quality review under 
due diligence.

3.5 The framework cost would equate to £10.38 per employee, per annum with a £495 
one off set up fee (based on 310 staff and a 2 year agreement).  The framework did 
not include an EAP offering, which would cost an additional £6.95 per employee, per 
annum. Total cost £10,744.60 with a one off set up fee of £495.00. Even 
though it is still better value than our existing OPTUM/NOSS provision, it is 
approx.30% more expensive than the preferred option offered by the same supplier.  

3.6 That we move to a new proposal from our EAP provider, to include a Free 
Employee Discounts portal

3.7 Our existing EAP provider, Enlighten, could offer a full 6 session face to face 
Employee Assistance Programme  at £6.95 per employee per annum, a total annual 
cost of £2154.50 to cover all 310 employees. 

3.8 Perks At Work, their Employee Discounts  portal  would be accessed either through 
the EAP or the Perks At Work site.  Unfortunately, Perks At Work is unable to 
integrate salary sacrifice benefits or existing Council benefits onto it’s platform, nor 
offer a benefits helpdesk.  This was a key requirement for a “one stop shop” 
approach to our Employee benefits.

Page 7



4. Implications

Financial and Budgetary Implications 

4.1 A two year commitment will be £7,086.60, with a one off set up fee of £450.00.  
This will be offset by a saving of at least £4000, on transfer of our EAP and 
Counselling provision to Sodexo. 

4.2 There is a minimal risk that our Counselling requirements reduce to such a level, 
therefore not offsetting the Sodexo investment.  However, FirstCare statistics have 
shown that mental health in 2018/19 has increased to become our second largest 
absence reason behind musculoskeletal.  The fact that employees could self refer to 
face-to-face counselling free of charge through Sodexo, whilst still in work, could 
also help reduce absenteeism and improve engagement.

Legal and Governance Implications

4.3 None.

Risk Implications

4.4 None.

Corporate/Policy Implications

4.5 Risk of not delivering the People Strategy 2018-21, through commitment to attract, 
retain and reward an excellent workforce.  

Equality Implications

4.6 Minimal risk as it is a web-enabled offering to all staff.

Human Resources Implications

4.7 Minimal risk of transferring certain benefit administration and employee helpdesk 
support to Sodexo, rather than it being administered by People services.  We will 
have full account management by Sodexo as part of the contract.

4.8 Risk of low utilisation will be minimised, through a comprehensive communications 
strategy included in the contract, including promotional material, events and 
roadshows.

4.9 Minimising risk of workforce attrition due to offering a comprehensive employee 
benefits platform, 24/7, to all staff.  The employee can then appreciate the value of 
their employment offer.

Health and Safety Implications

4.10 None.

Social, Environmental and Economic Implications

4.11 None.

Page 8



Contact Officer: Catherine Simcox
Tel: 01905 722043, Email: 
catherine.simcox@worcester.gov.uk 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Personnel and General Purposes Sub Committee, 17th July 2019

Report of: Head of People Services

Subject: EMPLOYER SUPPORTED VOLUNTEERING POLICY 

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Sub-Committee agrees to the introduction of an ‘Employer 
Supported Volunteering (ESV) Policy.’ 

2. Background

2.1 ESV is where employees could take paid time off to volunteer during work hours or 
claim back time for volunteering outside of working hours. Employees can choose to 
use their volunteering time to support a charity or community group of their own 
choice or to take up an opportunity provided by their company.

Our city plan has 5 key themes where social and voluntary action is key to their 
overall success. Enabling our employees to give some of their time back to their local 
communities can only enhance this:

 Stronger and connected communities
 Prosperous city
 Healthy and active city
 Heritage city for 21st century
 Sustaining and improving our assets

In a climate where the levels of corporate social 
responsibility can make the difference between 
the employer branding of one business over an 
other, ESV is becoming increasingly popular in 
both the private and public sectors. It is 
recognised that a successfully managed 
employer supported volunteering programme 
can be a fulfilling experience for everyone 
concerned.

2.2 Our people strategy states we will focus on:

 Attracting the best candidates to work for us
 Offering great development opportunities to our people
 Creating the conditions in which being the best you can be is noticed and 

rewarded
 Supporting our workers to be happy, healthy and here
 Understanding what engages our workers and delivering what they need from us

Page 11 Agenda Item 6



Volunteering can play a valuable contribution to all of those ambitions by enhancing 
what we can offer to attract new employees; adding additional opportunities to our 
employees as part of the wider learning and development offering; recognising what 
our employees have said is important to them; and driving up levels of engagement 
and satisfaction.

Furthermore, there are many discussion papers highlighting the direct relationship 
between people staying connected, giving some of their time to things that matter to 
them and their higher levels of health and well being. In fact our staff survey with 
Best Companies specifically measures employee engagement in line with ‘giving 
something back.

Exposing our employees to experiencing other environments, cultures, colleagues 
and delivery models can only enhance their contribution to the council and their 
ability to live our values, particularly in times of encouraging creativity and 
transformation.

2.3 Our employees told us as part of our excellence self assessment that we needed to 
improve on how we valued and recognised their performance. When consulting with 
colleagues about the things that would help them ‘feel’ valued, time off for 
volunteering was a common and recurring suggestion. 

2.4 There is no direct cost to the council to introduce an ESV. This is about giving people 
time. That means we can very quickly and easily introduce something that is not 
only recognised nationally as good practice in Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
but is something our employees want.

Although there will be a loss to the council in terms of time spent doing the day job, 
there is clear research that indicates the levels of employees satisfaction and 
engagement as a result of being supported to do something that matters to them, 
has a positive impact on their performance generally. 

3. Preferred Option 

3.1 Adopt a scheme with a supporting simple request, approval and confirmation process 
(see Appendix 1) that enables staff to take up to 2 days additional leave per 
financial year for volunteering activities. 

3.2 We will define volunteering in line with the National Council for Voluntary 
Organisations’ (NCVO) guidance which states that it is:

‘any activity that involves spending time, unpaid, doing something that aims to 
benefit the environment or someone (individuals or groups) other than, or in 
addition to, close relatives. Central to this definition is the fact that volunteering 
must be a choice freely made by each individual’

3.3 In addition, we would expect any volunteering activity supported as part of our ESV 
programme to be based in or for the benefit of Worcester and not driven by any 
political or extremist view).

3.4 Volunteering can also include any internal opportunities to support for major city 
events and can either be for the short or long term.

Page 12



Example of Short term Example of Long term 

Supporting a charitable fundraising 
event such as a marathon, cycle ride

Career talks in schools

Team challenge

Other Council events such as the 
Christmas fayre, park shows

Charity trustee

School Governor

Befriender or mentor

Work in a charity shop

Organise a community group

3.5 Volunteering Leave could be taken in half or whole days but at the agreement of 
the manager, within operational demands and with at least 1 months notice of start 
to enable effective planning.

3.6 We will ensure appropriate mechanisms are established for gathering volunteering 
successes, enabling some council measurement of social impact.

4. Alternative Options Considered

4.1 Like some organisations, we could allow the flexi working scheme to support 
volunteering and therefore not introduce additional paid time off. The difficulty with 
such an approach is that it excludes a large proportion of the workforce who work 
fixed shift patterns and can not benefit from flexi time. 

Such an approach also means that by default employees have accrued time off due 
to additional hours work and we then encourage this time off to be used for further 
work. The benefit of flex time off for employees is to maximise on work life balance.

4.2 We could adopt a scheme that enables staff to take up to 2 days additional leave per 
financial year for volunteering activities undertaken in non working days/hours. In 
other words, people would be gifted with time off to offset time spent on charitable 
activities undertaken in their own time. There would be an expectation that this is 
matched by an equal commitment of the individual’s own time.

4.3 We do not introduce an employee supported volunteering programme and think 
carefully about our rational for not pursuing something of real interest to staff that 
would cost the council very little to introduce.

5. Implications

5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications

The costs to deliver are manageable and arguably indirect. There will be an increase 
in staff downtime and an associated indirect cost implication for days lost to 
volunteering. This would equate to £23,760 pa (as at November 2018) based on 
35% of the workforce using 2 days additional leave at an average day rate of £108.

Page 13



5.2 Legal and Governance Implications
It is critical that any programme we introduce is built on fair and robust processes 
and practices in order that the anticipated benefits can be realised.

5.3 Risk Implications
 There is a risk of staff misusing the system in order to gain additional time off.
 There is a risk of council reputational damage should an employee engage with a 

charitable activity that ‘hits the press’ for any negative reason
 There is a risk of an insurance claim if we are not clear in our policy and practice 

about responsibilities

All risks are low in likelihood. Policy and process implementation will mitigate the 
risk.

5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications
An Employee Assisted Volunteering Policy will be introduced.

5.5 Equality Implications
Fair and transparent systems will be developed to ensure all staff have the 
opportunity to participate.

5.6 Human Resources Implications
Staff time to develop, maintain and monitor our ESVP. 

5.7 Health and Safety Implications
Need to be clear on responsibilities during any volunteering time.

5.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications
Taking such an approach can only enhance the Council’s social, environmental and 
economic impact.

Ward(s): All
Contact Officer: Mark Edwards – mark.edwards@worcester.gov.uk – 01905 

722042
Background Papers: None 

Page 14

mailto:mark.edwards@worcester.gov.uk


Employer Supported Volunteering Policy V1.0 Page 1 of 8

Worcester City Council 

Employer Supported 
Volunteering Policy (ESVP)

1 April 2019

Employer Supported Volunteering Policy 
Status Draft 
Document Version V1.0 
Author Michelle O’Neill 
Sponsor Mark Edwards 
Owner People Services 
Approved by 
Approved date 
Review frequency Bi-annual 
Next Review: 2021

 Version History 
Version Date Description 
0.1 1 May 2019 Draft

Finding a VOLUNTEERING OPPORTUNITY:

Worcester Volunteer Centre
Worcester Community Action
Find It in Worcestershire
Reach Volunteering
http://www.dwt.org.uk/
https://do-it.org/

Page 15 Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1

https://www.clinks.org/directory/43428
https://www.worcestercommunityaction.org.uk/volunteering-opportunities
https://www.finditinworcestershire.com/socialvalue
https://reachvolunteering.org.uk/opportunity-search
http://www.dwt.org.uk/
https://do-it.org/


Employer Supported Volunteering Policy V1.0 Page 2 of 8

Contents

1. Introduction ...............................................................................3

2. Scope........................................................................................3

3. Definitions .................................................................................3

4. Exclusions ...................................................................................4

5. Benefits of volunteering ................................................................4

6. Time off ......................................................................................5

7. Legal responsibilities.....................................................................5

7.1 Insurance .............................................................................5

7.2 Health and Safety ..................................................................5

7.3 Disclosure and Barring Service Checks......................................6

7.4 Safeguarding.........................................................................6

8. Volunteer Expenses ......................................................................6

9. Monitoring and evaluation .............................................................6

10. Any problems.............................................................................7

Page 16



Employer Supported Volunteering Policy V1.0 Page 3 of 8

1. Introduction 

1.1 Employer Supported Volunteering is where employees can take paid time 
off to volunteer in their local communities during work hours. Employees 
can choose to use their volunteering time to support a charity or 
community group of their own choice or to take up an opportunity 
provided by the council. In its broadest terms, it is a way for the council 
to demonstrate corporate social responsibility whilst developing and 
enabling its people to ‘give something back’

1.2 This policy sets out Worcester City Council’s approach for supporting and 
encouraging involvement in voluntary activity by its employees. The 
voluntary activity must be linked to the Council’s Vision for Worcester and 
in particular, contribute to one of the city plan priorities, which are:

 Stronger and connected communities
 Prosperous city
 Healthy and active city
 Heritage city for 21st century
 Sustaining and improving our assets

2. Scope 

2.1 Our Employer Supported Volunteering (ESV) approach is firmly aligned 
with our People Strategy. In particular, it aims to address our ambitions 
for:

 enhancing our offer to attract new employees; 
 continuously improve levels of employee engagement and satisfaction; 
 recognise what people have said is important to them;
 help people perform with excellence;
 broaden our learning and development offer; and
 promote improved health and wellbeing.

2.2 Specifically this policy provides all employees with the opportunity to 
request up to 2 days paid leave (over and above annual leave) in any 
given financial year for community volunteering activities.

3. Definitions

3.1 We define volunteering in line with the National Council for Voluntary 
Organisations’ (NCVO) guidance which states that it is:

‘ any activity that involves spending time, unpaid, doing something that 
aims to benefit the environment or someone (individuals or groups) other 
than, or in addition to, close relatives. Central to this definition is the fact 

that volunteering must be a choice freely made by each individual’

Page 17



Employer Supported Volunteering Policy V1.0 Page 4 of 8

3.2 In addition, we would expect any volunteering activity supported as part 
of our ESV to be based in, or for the benefit of, Worcester. 

3.3 Volunteering can also include any internal opportunities to support major 
city events and can either be for the short or long term 

Example of Short term Example of Long term

Supporting a charitable fundraising 
event such as a marathon, cycle ride

Career talks in schools

Team challenge

Other Council events such as the 
Christmas fayre, park shows

Charity trustee

School Governor

Befriender or mentor

Work in a charity shop

Organise a community group

4. Exclusions

4.1 The council reserves the right to decline any volunteering activity if it has 
cause for concern. But specifically, we will not support:

4.1.1 Volunteering activity that has or appears to be driven by any 
political or extremist view; 

4.1.2 Any volunteering activity that presents itself as potentially bringing 
the council into disrepute; 

4.1.3 Any volunteering activity that happens outside of work time or in 
the past. This can not be claimed in lieu or retrospectively;

4.1.4 Volunteering activity that the line manager believes could cause the 
employee a conflict of interest due to the nature of their job or 
wider service area.

5. Benefits of volunteering

5.1 Exposing employees to experiences in other environments, cultures and 
with other colleagues and customers can only enhance their overall 
contribution to the council. In particular, their ability to live our values 

5.2 Volunteering should be a rewarding, worthwhile activity for all who 
participate. There are numerous benefits to be gained by the employee, 
the council and the partner organisation. 

For the employee, volunteering can give the opportunity to: 

 Develop new skills that have been identified either by them personally 
or as part of a performance review; 

 Further develop existing skills in a contrasting environment; 

Page 18



Employer Supported Volunteering Policy V1.0 Page 5 of 8

 Increase motivation back in the workplace; 
 Improve morale, having negotiated a personally rewarding experience; 
 Increase in confidence; 
 Increase awareness of the local community;
 Gain an added sense of purpose and value. 

 

6. Time off

6.1 Employees will be entitled to apply for the equivalent of 2 working days 
paid ESV leave (pro rata) in any given financial year to participate in 
voluntary activities during working hours.

6.2 This leave is over and above any annual leave or statutory holiday 
entitlement. 

6.3 ESV leave could be taken in no less than half a day, all in one period or 
over separate occasions. It is at the agreement of the line manager, 
within operational demands and must be requested in advance with at 
least 1 month’s notice of start to enable effective planning

6.4 In line with the procedure at Appendix A, time-off can be granted by the 
line manager. Approvals will be considered on their individual merits 
taking into account:

 The discussion taken place with the employee about suitability; 
 Clear benefits to both the employee and the service;
 ESV experience planned and managed in the learning lounge with 

obvious links to an employees personal development or well being;
 Suggested evidence the employee will submit to support the 

volunteering activity;
 Agreed time off being recorded on worklife and reflected in operational 

timesheets;
 That random checks can be made with voluntary organisations that 

agreed ESV activity is underway or completed.

6.5 Where ultimately evidence can not be provided by the employee in 
support of volunteering activity, we will need to retrospectively agree 
how that time off will be recorded. This may result in the employee using 
annual leave, flex or unpaid leave. 

7. Legal responsibilities

7.1 Insurance
Whilst the Council may endorse the chosen volunteering activities of 
employees, it will not accept responsibility for insuring them when 
engaged in activities outside of its premises. Individuals must therefore 
ensure that they are adequately covered by their chosen voluntary 

Page 19



Employer Supported Volunteering Policy V1.0 Page 6 of 8

organisation. During events organised by the Council, the Council will take 
responsibility for checking that adequate insurance cover is provided and 
will inform employees accordingly.

7.2 Health and Safety
Whilst the Council may endorse the chosen volunteering activities of 
employees, it cannot accept responsibility for their health and safety when 
they are engaged in activities outside of its premises or its control. 
Individuals must therefore ensure that they adequately understand and 
are shown the necessary health and safety responsibilities by their chosen 
voluntary activity/organisation. During events organised by the Council, 
the Council will take responsibility for ensuring relevant employees are 
aware of health and safety requirements.

7.3 Disclosure and Barring Service Checks
Some organisations, for example, those working with children or 
vulnerable adults, may require their volunteers to undergo Disclosure and 
Barring checks. Such checks will normally be carried out by the voluntary 
organisation itself. The council will not conduct these checks for another 
organisation.

7.4 Safeguarding
Employees are encouraged to understand the safeguarding reporting 
processes for the organisation or community group in which they are 
volunteering. It is advised that you raise any safeguarding concerns 
identified as part of the volunteering activity to the relevant voluntary or 
community group. However, the council will not object to receiving an 
employees safeguarding concerns as ultimately we want to ensure that 
issues are addressed.

8. Volunteer Expenses

8.1 The employee should expect the voluntary organisation to supply them 
with any necessary equipment or tools relevant to the voluntary 
role. Unless specifically offered otherwise by the voluntary organisation, 
the employee will personally be responsible for meeting any related travel 
or subsistence expenses. 

8.2 For designed team activity agreed by a service, teams may wish to 
purchase materials to enhance team-building. These expenses will be met 
by service budgets 

Page 20



Employer Supported Volunteering Policy V1.0 Page 7 of 8

9. Monitoring and evaluation

9.1 The employee is responsible for creating their ESV plan, keeping it up to 
date, logging their agreed time off, successfully participating in the 
volunteering activity and then sharing any successes

An employees line manager can say ‘no’ where there are reasonable 
grounds to do so. Gaining approval is necessary before any time off is 
used.

9.2 The line manager is responsible for giving due consideration and response 
to any ESV request, monitoring time off for volunteering and maximising 
the benefits this can bring to the employee’s performance, the work of the 
service and the reputation of the Council

Volunteering is open to all employees, whatever their grade or work 
pattern. Line managers are expected to be clear on rationale for any 
request not approved. 

9.3 People Services will report to the Corporate Leadership Team on overall 
hours, uptake across the council and trends of ESV activity each year and 
share any particular success stories. 

9.4 Any potential breach or misuse of the ESV policy may result in disciplinary 
action. 

10. Any problems

10.1 The aim is that your volunteering will be a positive experience that 
meets all your objectives. Remember, you are under no obligation to keep 
volunteering for an organisation that you feel unhappy in. 

10.2 If the you have any concerns about the volunteer placement you are 
encouraged to talk to someone at the partner organisation initially. This 
could be someone who is responsible for you while volunteering. 

10.3 You can discuss any concerns with your line manager but they are not 
responsible for liaising directly with the voluntary organisation or 
community group on your behalf. You should talk to your line manager if 
you plan to end the voluntary activity sooner than planned.

10.4 Any issues that an employee feels unable to resolve and would like further 
advice, People Services can be contacted.

Page 21



Employer Supported Volunteering Policy V1.0 Page 8 of 8

Page 22



1  

Report to: Personnel and General Purposes Sub-Committee, 17th July 2019

Report of: Head of People Services 

Subject: REVIEW OF LOCAL CONDITIONS

1. Recommendation

1.1 To approve the proposed amendments to the Local Conditions.

2. Background

2.1 There have been some minor changes since the local conditions were last approved 
by P&GP on 12 December 2018 which need to be updated including:

2.1.1 Amending the review period for paying 100% for Industrial Accidents from 2018 to 
at some point in the future.

2.1.2 Amending the call out rate which has not been updated since 2013 to link into the 
NJC National pay spine that can be updated annually.

2.1.3 Updating the revised spinal column point level on the new pay spine for those eligible 
for overtime.

3. Implications

3.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications
Minimal implications for call out updates as not widely used.

3.2 Legal and Governance Implications
None.

3.3 Risk Implications
Risk of employees not being clear on the latest changes as summarised above.

3.4 Corporate/Policy Implications
None.  

3.5 Equality Implications
None.

3.6 Human Resources Implications
As above.

3.7 Health and Safety Implications
None.

Page 23 Agenda Item 7



2  

Social, Environmental and Economic Implications

3.8 None.

Ward(s): All
Contact Officer: Alison Darbyshire, People Services Team Leader 01905 

721159.  alison.darbyshire@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers: none 
 

Page 24

mailto:alison.darbyshire@worcester.gov.uk


Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2   Page 1 of 13

Worcester City Council

LOCAL CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 2019

Approved by Personnel & General Purposes Committee 12 December 2018

(Incorporating Collective Agreements 2012 & 2013)

(Supplementing the National Agreement)

MUSEUM & ART GALLERY
FOREGATE STREET
WORCESTER
WR1 1DT

Page 25 Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2 Page 2 of 13

Contents
1. Scope...........................................................................................................3
2. Change of Head Office Address ........................................................................3
3. Pay and Deductions........................................................................................3
3.1. Monthly Salaries - Pay Date ............................................................................3
3.2. Operative Date - Salaries and Allowances..........................................................3
3.3. Advance Salary Payments ...............................................................................3
3.4. Basic pay (update from collective agreement 2012)............................................3
3.5. Sick pay and Industrial Accident sick pay ..........................................................3
3.6. Car allowances ..............................................................................................4
3.7. Working arrangements ...................................................................................4
3.8. Standby & Call out – update from agreement effective 1.11.13 ............................4
3.9. NJC for craft workers......................................................................................5
3.10. Shift Allowance (update from collective agreement 2012)....................................5
3.11. Voluntary Deductions from Salary ....................................................................5

a) Orchard Healthcare (previously Worcester Hospital Contributors Association) .........5
b) Trade Union Subscriptions...............................................................................5
c) Charitable Giving ...........................................................................................5

4. Working Hours/Arrangements and Overtime......................................................5
4.1. Overtime ......................................................................................................5
4.2. Extreme Weather Conditions ...........................................................................6
4.3. Major Emergency Plan ....................................................................................6
5. Leave...........................................................................................................7
5.1. Annual Leave ................................................................................................7
5.2. Fixed Christmas Holidays ................................................................................7
5.3. Special Leave ................................................................................................8
5.4. Service in Non-Regular Forces .........................................................................9
5.5. Jury Service ..................................................................................................9
5.6. Time Off for Public Duties................................................................................9
6. Benefits ......................................................................................................10
6.1. Payment of Professional Subscriptions ............................................................10
6.2. Long Service Awards ....................................................................................10
6.3. Injuries to Employees ...................................................................................10
7. Leisure Opportunities....................................................................................10
7.1. Concessionary Rates - Use of Sports Centre Facilities ........................................10
7.2. Concessionary Rates – For Worcester Racecourse .............................................11
7.3. Concessionary Rates – For Hire of Grass pitches...............................................11
7.4. Angling Permits - Pitchcroft ...........................................................................11
7.5. Conditions Relating to Concessionary Usage ....................................................11
8. General ......................................................................................................12
8.1. Notice of Termination of Employment .............................................................12
8.2. Private Work and Other Employment ..............................................................12
8.3. Professional Indemnification ..........................................................................12
8.4. Sickness absence & third party recoverable damages ........................................13

Page 26



Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2 Page 3 of 13

1. Scope
These local conditions of service apply to all employees of the Council.

Please refer to your line manager in the first instance or People Services if you 
require further clarification.

2. Change of Head Office Address
The Worcester City Council Head Office address changed from Orchard House, Farrier 
Street, Worcester, to Museum & Art Gallery (MAG), Foregate Street, Worcester WR1 
1DT effective from 16 February 2015.  All staff previously located at the Orchard 
House complex are contractually re-located to the Museum & Art Gallery (as their 
main base unless otherwise specified) from this date.

3. Pay and Deductions

1.1. Monthly Salaries - Pay Date
Payment of monthly salaries is made by credit transfer on the 21st day of each 
month unless that is a non-banking day in which case payment is made on the 
preceding banking day.  Pay slips will normally be made available electronically 
through the Worklife system.

1.2. Operative Date - Salaries and Allowances
All resolutions affecting pay and allowances shall become operative from the first day 
of the month in which Council or Cabinet approval is obtained, unless a date is 
approved and appears in the minute of approval.

1.3. Advance Salary Payments 
For employees who commence after the payroll cut-off  in cases of extreme hardship, 
advance payment of two weeks basic pay can be made to new employees, on 
request, at the end of their first fortnight’s employment and will be recovered from 
the first normal salary payment.

1.4. Basic pay (update from collective agreement 2012)
Following a deviation from the pay settlement’s agreed by the NJC for Local 
Government Services, (detailed in Collective agreement 2012) with effect from the 
year commencing 1st April 2016, the Council will reiterate its long term commitment 
to national pay bargaining and return to paying the annual cost of living awards in 
accordance with the relevant national agreements.        

1.5. Sick pay and Industrial Accident sick pay
Sick Pay: Subject to the maximum periods that an employee qualifies for sick pay in 
accordance with service provisions set out in the national agreement, contractual pay 
will be paid at the rate of 90% of normal salary, inclusive of Statutory Sick Pay (for 
any period defined as full pay in the national agreement).  Periods of ‘half pay’ 
thereafter will be as set out in the national agreement and so Statutory Sick Pay will 
be paid in addition to half pay. 

Industrial Accident Sick Pay: A temporary arrangement with the trade unions has 
been put in place to pay 100% sick pay to staff who are sick due to an accident at 

Page 27



Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2 Page 4 of 13

work where the accident is fully reported on the day.  This arrangement is subject to 
review and may be discontinued by the Council at some point in the future.

1.6. Car allowances 
Staff using their own cars on business related travel will be paid a mileage allowance 
at the HMRC approved mileage rate (currently 45 pence per mile).                                                                                  

1.7. Working arrangements 
Staff who are required to work additional hours beyond 37 per week will receive 
overtime payment at ‘plain time’ for such additional hours worked between Mondays 
and Saturdays, and ‘time and a half’ for such additional hours worked on Sundays or 
Public Holidays (see 4.2. Overtime’ for eligibility).

Ordinarily, staff are not contractually obliged to work additional hours beyond their 
normal working hours.  However, specified staff working within the refuse collection 
service will be contractually required, to make themselves available (unless they are 
absent on sick leave or annual leave), for a maximum of 20 days over any two year 
period, to undertake additional hours to ‘catch up’ on collections following 
Christmas, Easter, other public holidays and periods where severe weather has 
prevented ordinary collection.  In return for this contractual commitment, in addition 
to overtime pay, a payment of £240 per annum, to be paid monthly, will be made.

Where, as part of the normal working week, staff are required to work on Sundays or 
Public Holidays, such working hours will be paid at ‘time and a half’ (known as 
‘Enhanced’ weekend working’).  Work at all other times, undertaken as part of 
the normal working week, will be paid at the normal hourly rate.

1.8. Standby & Call out – update from agreement effective 1.11.13
a) Employees who may be required to be called out to work outside their normal 

working hours, may be put on standby and paid the agreed Standby rate (currently 
£100 per week).

b) Apart from within the Strategic Housing Service where certain individuals are 
contractually required to be on call out as part of their Statutory role, other staff, if 
requested by their line manager, may volunteer to be called out.

c) An employee who is paid standby is required to work if they are called out and any 
call out (including telephone work) will be paid at the following rate regardless of 
grade:

o Monday to Saturday - £10.14 per hour (wef 1.4.19 - linked to scp 7 of the NJC 
national pay spine)

o Sunday - £15.21 per hour

d) The minimum call out payment will be 30 minutes (this means that if a call out lasts 
10 minutes, 30 minutes may be claimed at the appropriate rate).  

e) An employee who is called out to work will be entitled to the daily rest periods 
detailed in the working time regulations (Currently if you are an adult worker you 
have the right to a break of at least 11 hours between working days. This means as 
an adult worker, if you finish work at 8.00 pm on Monday and normally start work at 

Page 28



Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2 Page 5 of 13

6am you should not start work until 7.00 am on Tuesday, although you will be paid 
from your normal start time.)

1.9. NJC for craft workers
The City Council and the trade unions agree that the terms and conditions for the 
NJC for Craft Workers (‘Red Book’) will no longer be recognised and all such staff will 
be within the same terms and conditions of service as other staff, (the National Joint 
Council (NJC) for Local Government Services, save for such modifications contained 
within this agreement and any further local modifications that may be collectively 
agreed in the future).

1.10.Shift Allowance (update from collective agreement 2012)
With effect from 1st April 2014 and thereafter a shift allowance of 7% of basic salary, 
will be paid to staff who work on a shift pattern of two or more shifts where:

- the total period covered by the shifts is 11 hours or more 

- there are at least four hours between the starting time of the earliest shift and the 
starting time of the latest shift

- at least half of the shifts on the rota have working hours outside the hours of 
8.00am to 6.00pm

- there are at least 14 hours between the starting time of the earliest shift and the 
finishing time of the latest shift

1.11.Voluntary Deductions from Salary
The following voluntary deductions may, at the employee's request, be made from 
salary:

a) Orchard Healthcare (previously Worcester Hospital Contributors Association)

A scheme that provides certain financial benefits in the event of hospitalisation, 
dental and certain other forms of medical treatment is available.  It is NOT a private 
health care scheme.  Details may be obtained from People Services or the Intranet.

b) Trade Union Subscriptions

May only be deducted if at least 20 members of the same Union authorise deductions 
to be made.

c) Charitable Giving

A give as you earn scheme whereby employees may donate money to charities of 
their choice.

4. Working Hours/Arrangements and Overtime

1.12.Overtime
a) All overtime (with the exception of emergency call outs) must be approved in 

advance by the appropriate line manager.

b) Normally overtime is only payable to employees paid below SCP 26, i.e. those in 
receipt of a salary of SCP 25 or less.

c) Wherever time off in lieu is granted as an alternative to payment for overtime, then 

Page 29



Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2 Page 6 of 13

only the equivalent time off is allowed, i.e. there is no enhancement of time off in 
lieu.

d) Employees paid SCP 26 or above, excluding Heads of Service, are only eligible for 
overtime in the following circumstances:

i) For emergency call out outside normal working hours. (see 4.e for how this applies to 
employees subject to flexi-time working hours)

ii) When required to attend any meeting as part of their duties outside normal office 
hours and compensatory leave of absence in lieu is not granted.

iii)When required to work to maintain essential services outside normal working hours 
and the Head of Service has not granted equivalent time off in lieu - payable at plain 
time rate.

a) In the case of employees subject to flexi-time working hours:

i) The requirement that overtime working must be approved in advance is to be strictly 
observed and under no circumstances can 'excess' time worked as a result of flexible 
working hours rank for payment as overtime.

ii) Overtime is not payable in respect of work carried out between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 
p.m. unless

 The prior approval of the appropriate Head of Service has been obtained.
 The employee is at the maximum 'carry forward figure' of plus 20 hours, and

 Copies of the relevant time sheets are submitted with the claim form.

b) In the case of part-time and job share employees, payment at overtime rates may be 
made where they are required to attend any meeting as part of their duties outside 
their normal working hours and outside their flexible working hours provisions.

c) It should be noted that the conditions of service provide that

i) Extra time of less than half an hour on any day does not rank for overtime.

ii) Overtime is aggregated for each calendar month and only complete half hours paid 
for.

1.13.Extreme Weather Conditions
In the event of extreme weather conditions the Managing Director may decide that 
normal working hours may be suspended for the day, in which case all Heads of 
Service will be notified immediately.  All employees who are at work when normal 
working is suspended shall record their normal working hours (e.g. 7 hours 24 
minutes in the case of full time employees subject to flexible working hours) or the 
actual time worked, whichever is the greater.  An employee who does not arrive at 
work at all in such extreme weather conditions shall be required to make up the 
shortfall in working hours by working additional hours at a later date, under the flexi-
time working hours scheme or otherwise, or by taking annual or unpaid leave.  At the 
discretion of the line manager, employees could work from home, if they have prior 
arrangements and equipment.

1.14.Major Emergency Plan
Employees listed in the Major Emergency Plan will be required to attend an 
emergency when called out if available.  Payment will be made in accordance with 
the normal Council policy.

Page 30



Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2 Page 7 of 13

5. Leave

1.15.Annual Leave
a) Annual leave entitlement will be 25 days (plus one ‘fixed day’ at Christmas) for all 

staff, or 30 days (plus one ‘fixed day’ at Christmas) where, at the start of the annual 
leave year, they have completed five years’ continuous local government service.  

b) The City Council reserves the right to declare, no less than six months in advance, 
that all or part of its service will close for an additional day at Christmas / New Year, 
in which case one day will be deducted from affected employees’ annual leave 
entitlement for the relevant year.  

c) Taking leave is part of maintaining a healthy work life balance and we would like all 
our employees to take their full entitlement each year.  On rare occasions where this 
has not been possible, up to five days annual leave (pro rata for part time 
employees) may be carried over to the end of the first quarter of the individual leave 
year, for example for a leave year commencing on 1 June 2015 up to 5 days annual 
leave not taken by 31 May 2016 may be carried forward for up to three months until 
the end of August 2016, subject to the needs of the service and the approval of the 
Head of Service or their delegated line manager.

d) Up to five days leave (pro rata for part time employees) may be brought forward 
from the new leave year to be used in an emergency, subject to the needs of the 
service and the approval of the appropriate line manager.

1.16.Buy More Leave

Employees may buy up to an additional 5 days annual leave (pro rata for part time) 
with effect from 1 April 2019.  Further details can be found within the Buy More 
Leave Policy. 

1.17.Fixed Christmas Holidays
The additional fixed day to be taken at Christmas will normally be as follows:

Christmas Day 
Falls On:

                 Christmas Holidays

Monday Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday (25th-27th December)

Tuesday Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday (24th-26th December)

Wednesday Wednesday, Thursday, Friday (25th-27th December)

Thursday Wednesday, Thursday, Friday (24th-26th December)

Friday Friday, Monday Tuesday (25th, 28th, 29th December)

Saturday Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday (27th-29th December)

Sunday Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday (26th-28th December)

Special arrangements may need to be made where the establishment or employee 
does not conform to the usual Monday - Friday working arrangements.

A pro rata entitlement applies to part time employees.

Page 31



Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2 Page 8 of 13

Where an employee is required by the Council to work over this period, they may 
take this fixed day on a mutually convenient alternative date as soon as possible 
after this date.

1.18.Special Leave
a) With Pay

Heads of Service are authorised to grant, for any reason, a maximum of seven days 
special leave with pay in any year ending 31st March (any longer period is subject to 
the approval of the Personnel and General Purposes Committee.  Specifically leave 
with pay is granted under this paragraph in the following cases:

i) on polling day for an employee who is a candidate in a parliamentary, European 
or local election;

ii) to enable employees to attend for interview for another appointment within local 
government;

iii) on polling day for an employee required to undertake official duties on behalf of 
the Returning Officer or equivalent;

iv) in respect of hospital, medical or dental appointments (see also Flexi time 
procedure).  The seven days annual maximum mentioned above does not apply 
in these circumstances.

v) in respect of family bereavement normally as follows:

a. A relative or partner who resided with the employee, or an employee's parent or 
guardian, son or daughter irrespective of where they resided - normally 3 days 
including the day of the funeral.

b. 1 day to attend the funeral of a grandparent, brother, sister, father-in-law, 
mother-in-law, son-in-law or daughter-in-law, or the equivalent if part of a 
common-law or same sex relationship (individual circumstances will be taken in 
account following discussions with the Head of People Services).

b) Victims of Domestic Abuse 

       In addition to the above special leave provisions an employee who is the victim of 
domestic abuse and decides to separate from the abuser may be granted up to 10 
days paid leave by approval of the Head of People Services to assist with protecting 
themselves and their children and securing new accommodation. 

c) Without Pay

Head of Services are authorised to grant any period appropriate to the circumstances 
of the case.

Emergency Leave 

The appropriate line manager can approve either annual leave, flexitime leave or 
unpaid leave for instances such as childcare or eldercare needs, at short notice.

This will only be an ad hoc or emergency arrangement.  Any longer term or regular 
requirements could be agreed under the flexible working policy or parental leave 

Page 32



Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2 Page 9 of 13

1.19.Service in Non-Regular Forces
Head of Services may grant unpaid leave for up to two weeks for employees required 
to attend their Annual Training camp with the Reserve Forces, time off for Trade 
Union Activities, etc.

a) Reasonable time off (with or without pay) to be granted by the Head of Service in 
accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the Advisory, Conciliation and 
Arbitration Service.

b) For UNISON Branch Executive and GMB equivalent meetings, and for Joint 
Consultative Committee subject to the needs of the service, delegates are permitted 
to attend meetings and to claim the duration of the meeting, under the flexible hours 
arrangements, or as TOIL if not employed on flexible hours scheme.

c) Leave with pay to be granted for two UNISON representatives to attend the UNISON 
Annual Conference and for one representative of other recognised unions to attend 
the Annual Conference.

d) Reasonable time off to be granted to Safety Representatives by the Head of Service 
in accordance with the official Codes of Practice.

1.20.Jury Service
Any employee who receives a summons to serve on a jury must report the fact to 
the Head of Service who shall grant leave of absence unless exemption is secured.

The employee must claim the maximum allowance for loss of earnings to which 
he/she is entitled and this amount is deducted from full salary.

1.21.Time Off for Public Duties
Provided that the Head of Service has given approval, time off is granted as follows:

a) Service as a Justice of the Peace (Magistrate)

Leave with pay.

b) Other Public Duties (as defined in employment legislation)

Reasonable time off with pay subject to a maximum of 7 days in any year ending 
31st March.

Public duties for this purpose include duties as:

i) a Member of a local authority (including a Parish Council or a County Council 
established under the Local Government Act 1972);

ii) a Member of any statutory tribunal;

iii) a Member of a NHS body; and

iv) a Governor of a grant-maintained school, higher education corporation, Academy 
or educational establishment maintained by a local education authority.

Page 33



Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2 Page 10 of 13

6. Benefits

1.22.Payment of Professional Subscriptions
Where it is a requirement of their job, specified in the person specification and 
agreed as such by their Head of Service, or in the case of Heads of Service or 
Directors, by their manager, an employee may be reimbursed 50% of the cost of the 
annual subscription to one professional association or institute.

1.23.Long Service Awards
An award of a gift of up to £250 (incl VAT) in value is made to employees after they 
have completed 25 years continuous service with Worcester City Council.

1.24.Injuries to Employees
a) Arising from Assault in the Course of Employment

In the event of permanent disablement or death arising from a violent or criminal 
assault suffered by the employee in the course or as a consequence of employment 
then payments in accordance with the national conditions of service are made.  
Details are available from People Services.

The Deputy Director, Governance is authorised to provide legal assistance and 
representation to any employee who is assaulted in the course of employment where 
the employee is unable or unwilling to obtain such assistance from a trade union.  
The Deputy Director, Governance must be satisfied that the case has a reasonable 
prospect of success and that there is no conflict between the Council's interests and 
the employee's interest.

b) Personal Accident Insurance

The Council has taken out an insurance policy whereby compensation may be paid in 
the event of an accident in the course of or travelling to and from work causing 
disablement or death.  Details are available from People Services.

7. Leisure Opportunities 

1.25.Concessionary Rates - Use of Sports Centre Facilities  
(A valid staff ID badge must be produced at the time of application)

All employees subject to the local conditions of service are entitled to use the 
facilities listed below in the Membership Further Information section at the following 
concessionary rates:-

Activity Charge Further Information

Fitness 
Introductions                        

Free When available to the public

Booking Card Free Allows booking for courts and 
classes up to 10 days in 
advance

Membership 25% off the 
standard rate

‘Connected’ membership covers 
all 3 Worcester leisure centres 
(Perdiswell Leisure Centre Tel: 

Page 34



Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2 Page 11 of 13

01905 457189, St Johns Sports 
Centre Tel: 01905 429900 & 
Nunnery Wood Sports Complex 
Tel: 01905 357842) plus the 
Malvern sites (Splash Tel: 
01684 893423 and the joint use 
facilities at Sport Martley Tel: 
01886 888999 & Dyson Perrins 
Tel: 01684 572645)

Individual activities - Gym 
Sessions, Fitness Classes, 
Racket Sports, Athletics 
Track.
Also includes non-sporting 
activities such as concerts 
etc.

25% off the 
standard rate

When available to the general 
public and excluding group 
activities such as the hire of the 
Sports Halls or All Weather 
Pitches.

1.26.Concessionary Rates – For Worcester Racecourse
Horse Race Meetings 50% off the 

standard charge
Tel: 01905 25364 for further 
details (Annual discount code 
required)

1.27.Concessionary Rates – For Hire of Grass pitches 
Hire of Grass Pitches 
(accredited City Council 
teams only)

50% off the 
standard charge

When available to the public

1.28.Angling Permits - Pitchcroft
Employees are permitted to angle from the river bank at Pitchcroft in accordance 
with the scheme applicable to residents of the City.

Applications for permits, which will be granted free of charge, should be made to the 
Head of Operations.  (Any licence required must still be obtained by the employee).

1.29.Conditions Relating to Concessionary Usage
a) Once a booking card has been issued this should be presented on arrival at the 

reception desks of the leisure centres listed above and the staff will then swipe the 
card to record details of the activity undertaken. The system will automatically 
charge the discounted fee.

b) When attending any other venue a valid staff ID badge must be produced in order to 
obtain the concession and use the facility.  The ID badges contain a photo and are 
therefore non transferable, and can be obtained from People Services but must be 
surrendered on leaving the Council's employment.

c) The right is reserved to withhold any available concession if any particular activity 
ceases to be viable.

d) Employees only to benefit from the concession.

e) Employees can book facilities 10 days in advance.

Page 35



Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2 Page 12 of 13

f) The concessions apply to sporting, leisure or fitness facilities only.  Concessions do 
not apply to goods, food and drink or other refreshments or to ‘one off’ concerts etc. 
where admittance is by ticket only.

g) The concessions apply only to activities controlled by the Council or their appointed 
representatives, activities controlled by outside agencies are not included.

h) This concessionary scheme is subject to review in consultation with the Unions.

8. General

1.30.Notice of Termination of Employment

The period of notice of leaving which an employee is required to give to the Council is 
as follows:-

Heads of Service and Directors 3 calendar months

Employees graded PTC up to but excluding Head of Service 2 calendar months

Others 1 calendar month

1.31.Private Work and Other Employment
Under the national conditions of service, an employee paid above SCP28 is prohibited 
from engaging in any other business or taking up any other additional appointment 
without the express consent of the Head of Service in consultation with Head of 
People Services.  In addition to this national provision the following local conditions 
also apply, irrespective of grade.

a) No employee may prepare plans or do any work for any development within the area 
of the authority (except where related to the employee’s own property).

b) No employee may do any work which might conflict with the Council's interests or 
the Working Time Directive.

c) Lectures etc. during working hours may be undertaken at the Head of Service’s 
discretion but any fees received are payable to the Council unless retention by the 
officer is specifically agreed by the Head of Service on consultation with the Head of 
People Services.

d) Enrolment as a Retained Fire-fighter or Special Constable is generally permitted in 
the local emergency services but nevertheless each case is subject to the approval of 
the Personnel and General Purposes Committee.

1.32.Professional Indemnification
The Council will, subject to the exceptions set out below, indemnify its employees 
and former employees against claims made against them (including costs awarded) 
and will not itself make claims against them for any loss or damage (other than 
claims falling within the cover provided to its employees or former employees under 
any policy of insurance taken out by the Council or any motor vehicle insurance 
policy taken out by the employee) occasioned by neglect, act, error or omission 

Page 36



Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2 Page 13 of 13

committed by the employees or former employees whilst acting in good faith and 
reasonably believing that they are acting in or about the pursuit of their duties on 
behalf of the Council and within the defined or assumed scope of their authority.

The Council will similarly indemnify its employees whilst properly engaged on work 
within the jurisdiction of another local government authority, government 
department or other body for whom they are authorised by the Council to do any 
work.

Exceptions - The indemnity will not extend to loss or damage directly or indirectly 
caused by or arising from:

a) fraud, dishonesty or criminal offence on the part of the employee (except where the 
criminal offence is an offence under the provisions of the Health and Safety at Work 
Act 1974, or relevant statutory provisions within the meaning of the Act, in which 
case the indemnity will continue to apply);

b) any neglect, error or omission by the employee other than acting in good faith and 
reasonably believing that he/she is acting in or about the pursuit of his/her duties 
and acting within the defined or assumed scope of his/her authority;

c) liabilities imposed by the District Auditor and/or the Court under Section 161 of the 
Local Government Act 1972.

The indemnity will not apply if an employee or former employee, without the written 
authority of the Council, admits liability or negotiates a settlement of any claim 
falling within the scope of this resolution with a third party.

1.33.Sickness absence & third party recoverable damages
If sickness absence is caused by the actionable negligence of a third party in respect 
of which damages are recoverable then any sums paid by the Council shall constitute 
loans to that member of staff, who shall:

1. forthwith notify the Council of all the relevant circumstances and of any claim, 
compromise, settlement or judgment made or awarded in connection therewith;

2. if the Council requires a refund of such sums as the Council may determine, not 
exceeding whichever is the lower of:

i) the amount of damages recovered under any compromise, settlement or 
judgment; and

ii) the sums advanced in respect of the period of incapacity.

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Personnel and General Purposes Sub-Committee, 17th July 2019

Report of: Head of People Services

Subject: HEALTH AND ATTENDANCE PERFORMANCE – 2018/19  

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Sub-Committee note the health and attendance performance for 
the year 2018/19 and actions being taken to reduce sickness absence; and

1.2 That the Sub-Committee note the voluntary leavers rate for the year 
2018/19.

2. Background

2.1 Over the last two years our sickness performance has progressively improved from 
low point of 12.63 days per full time equivalent employee (FTE) in 2016/17, we 
achieved 11.4 days per FTE in 2017/18 and 9.9 days per FTE in 2018/19.  This 
represents a 21% improvement over two years.

2.2 Our voluntary leavers rate in 1018/19 was 8.8%. This represents a 46% 
improvement over the last two years.   

3. Health and attendance in more detail 

3.1 Although we are continuing to see an improvement we still have some way to go in 
terms of our target of 7.5 days per FTE.  To set our results in context, the latest 
national figures for 2018 from CIPD/Expert HR are 5.6 days for all sectors combined 
and 9.8 days for the public sector.  Data is being compiled for West Midlands 
Councils in 2018/19 but is not yet available.  In this context our target might be 
seen as stretching, but we continue to believe it is achievable.  We have richer 
analysis of our data this thanks to the First Care attendance management system 
adopted last year and new figure available is that 48% of the workforce had no 
sickness absence at all last year.

3.2 The amount of doctor certified (and therefore longer term) absences has continued 
to decline as a proportion of the total days at 35%.  So whist we need to manage 
longer term sickness properly, we might expect our current efforts to improve levels 
of employee engagement to deliver improvements in the volume of short term 
absences.

3.3 Another new analysis available from First Care is an age break down of sickness 
rates.  Employees over 60 had the highest rates of absence at 13.69 days followed 
by 50-59 year olds at 12.41 and then the under 20s at 11.5.  It seems that once we 
have got the habit of coming to work regularly we do it pretty well until in middle 
age genuine chronic illnesses begin to impact on our health.  

Page 39 Agenda Item 8



Our workforce is an aging one so we will be focussing on health initiatives going 
forward that can help our employees to recognise and manage effectively health 
conditions associated with aging such as hypertension, arthritis and heart conditions. 

Illness Types

3.4 The highest single reason for absences that we can track back from our internal 
records remains musculo-skeletal problems at 17.4% of the total although it is down 
from 22.9% last year. Mental ill health absence has risen to 16.9% from 14.3% last 
year.  New data from First Care shows that cancer was our single biggest reason for 
absence last year.  These often involve lengthy absences from a small number of 
people which can have disproportionate impact on overall figures in a relatively small 
organisation such as ours. There seems little we can do to impact on this as an 
employer other than to mange such cases empathetically and professionally. 

Service areas

3.5 In most areas of the Council sickness rates have reduced significantly.  The one 
startling exception is Environmental Services.  Where the average number of days 
lost to sickness almost doubled to 27.2 per FTE.  This is in part due to restructures 
moving some non-manual posts from the service to other parts of the Council, but 
the fact remains that we have an aging largely male manual workforce doing jobs 
that are physically demanding and increasingly hard to cope with.  There are no easy 
answers to this situation, but we will be focussing on job redesign, part time working 
and flexible retirement in the next couple of years to deliver improvements.  

3.6 More data can be found in Appendix 1. 

4. Voluntary Leavers

4.1 Our voluntary leavers rate for 2018/19 was 8.8% compared with 13.5% in the 
previous year.  This is below our target of 10% and is a very welcome result as we 
were concerned that our high rates in recent years may have been indicative of 
worker dissatisfaction.  This bodes well for the 2019 Best Companies Employee 
Engagement survey.    

4.2 Whilst we wanted to reduce our turnover rate we have no particular wish to see it fall 
further.  Any organisation needs new blood to help it grow and improve and people 
seeking rapid progression by moving from authority to authority is fine local 
government tradition that on balance helps all councils.  We will of course continue 
to monitor the figures, but no particular action is required at this time.

Ward(s): All wards
Contact Officer: Mark Edwards – Tel:  email: 

mark.edwards@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers: None 

Page 40



Appendix 1

Sickness analysis Q4 2018/19 
 

 Total sickness by category
 Sickness by Service Area showing self cert & Dr certified days and average sick by 

FTE
 Long term & Short term sickness breakdown
 Quarterly sickness trend

Page 41



Qtr 4 Sickness 2018/19 - Total Sickness by Category

 
Sum of fte 
days sick

Sum of SC fte 
days

Sum of DR fte 
days

% fte days 
sick

Back & neck 
problems 208.60 64.86 143.74 6.81%
Eye ear nose/mouth 
dentl 120.70 47.71 72.99 5.61%
Genito-urinary 
menstrual 17.29 9.79 7.50 0.76%
Infections 152.34 121.49 30.86 3.64%
Neurological, 
headaches 123.65 62.14 61.51 6.09%
Other 734.43 303.98 430.45 26.20%
Other musculo-
skeletal 440.68 59.31 381.36 17.38%
Stomch liver kidny 
digst 271.03 180.53 90.50 11.44%
Stress, depr, anx, 
menta 460.70 116.57 344.13 16.88%
Chest, Respiratory 73.29 41.28 32.01 3.65%
Heart BP Circulation 31.33 30.12 1.22 1.54%
Pregnancy related 8.05 8.05 0.00 1.54%
Grand Total 2642.09 1045.83 1596.26 100.00%

7.90% 4.57%
0.65%

5.77%

4.68%

27.80%
16.68%

10.26%

17.44%

2.77% 1.19%

Back & neck problems

Eye ear nose/mouth dentl

Genito-urinary menstrual

Infections

Neurological, headaches

Other

Other musculo-skeletal

Stomch liver kidny digst

Stress, depr, anx, menta

Chest, Respiratory

Heart BP Circulation

% fte days sick

Page 42



Sickness by Service Area showing self cert & Dr certified days and average sick by 
FTE – Q4 - 18/19

 
Sum of DR 
fte days

Sum of SC fte 
days

Sum of fte 
days sick

FTE 
average 
Qtr 4

Av sick 
by FTE Q 
Cum

CLT & Corporate 
Services 19.0 10.2 29.2 7.8 3.7
Community Services 311.6 168.1 479.8 34.0 14.1
Economic Devt & 
Planning 55.8 30.5 86.3 28.1 3.1
Environmental 
Operations 1002.9 511.3 1514.3 55.8 27.2

Finance Service 15.0 12.0 27.0 10.8 2.5
Governance Services 37.6 23.8 61.4 12.6 4.9
Internal Audit SS 22.0 37.0 59.0 12.8 4.6

Joint Museum Service 1.2 49.7 50.9 57.8 0.9
People Services 0.0 7.0 7.0 7.4 0.9
Policy & Strategy 0.0 34.4 34.4 15.6 2.2
Property & Assets 0.0 1.0 1.0 2.9 0.3
Strategic Housing 131.1 160.8 291.9 31.1 9.4
Grand Total 1596.3 1045.8 2642.1 276.6 9.6

CLT
 &

 Corporat
e Se

rvi
ce

s

Community
 Se

rvi
ce

s

Eco
nomic D

evt 
& Plan

ning

Envir
onmental

 O
perat

ions

Fin
an

ce
 Se

rvi
ce

Gove
rnan

ce
 Se

rvi
ce

s

Internal 
Audit S

S

Joint M
useum Se

rvi
ce

People Se
rvi

ce
s

Policy
 &

 St
rat

egy

Property
 &

 Asse
ts

Str
ate

gic
 Housin

g
0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

Av sick by FTE Q Cum

Long term & Short term sickness breakdown

Page 43



Q 1 to 4

Sum of 
DR fte 
days

Sum 
of SC 
fte 
days

Sum 
of fte 
days 
sick

L
Strategic Housing 97.0 88.5 185.5
Internal Audit SS 22.0 0.0 22.0
Community Services 193.1 21.3 214.4
Governance Services 23.1 0.0 23.1
Environmental 
Operations 482.9 44.2 527.1
L Total 818.1 154.0 972.1
S
Finance Service 15.0 12.0 27.0
Strategic Housing 34.1 72.3 106.4
Economic Devt & 
Planning 55.8 30.5 86.3
Internal Audit SS 0.0 37.0 37.0
CLT & Corporate 
Services 19.0 10.2 29.2
Community Services 118.5 146.9 265.4
Governance Services 14.5 23.8 38.3
Joint Museum Service 1.2 49.7 50.9
People Services 0.0 7.0 7.0
Policy & Strategy 0.0 34.4 34.4
Environmental 
Operations 520.0 467.1 987.2
Property & Assets 0.0 1.0 1.0
S Total 778.1 891.8 1670.0
Grand Total 1596.3 1045.8 2642.1

Long > 27 days in 
calendar month 37% 3.5
Short < 27 days in 
calendar month 63% 6.0

100% 9.6

Page 44



05
/0

6

06
/0

7

07
/0

8

08
/0

9

09
/1

0

10
/1

1

11
/1

2

12
/1

3

13
/1

4

14
/1

5

15
/1

6

16
/1

7

17
/1

8

18
/1

9

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

Sickness by year

ft
e 

si
ck

 d
ay

s/
av

er
ag

e 
ft

e

Sickness Trend data

Year 1st Q 2nd Q 3rd Q 4th Q

Total 
to 
date Tgt

05/06 3.14 3.40 2.36 2.92 11.82 7.50
06/07 2.34 2.64 2.40 2.97 10.34 7.50
07/08 2.10 2.93 3.19 2.76 10.98 7.50
08/09 2.08 2.34 2.68 2.70 9.81 7.50
09/10 2.74 2.01 2.55 2.59 9.89 7.50
10/11 2.03 2.12 2.28 2.88 9.30 7.50
11/12 1.53 1.88 2.75 2.35 8.51 7.50
12/13 2.13 3.14 3.11 3.46 11.84 7.50
13/14 2.60 1.96 2.00 1.58 8.14 7.50
14/15 1.74 2.72 2.31 2.30 9.07 7.50
15/16 1.81 2.20 2.75 3.84 10.60 7.50
16/17 3.30 3.70 3.63 2.00 12.63 7.50
17/18 1.70 2.60 3.40 3.70 11.40 7.50
18/19 2.60 1.90 2.90 2.50 9.90 7.50
Av 2.27 2.54 2.74 2.75

Sickness Trend data

Page 45



05
/0

6:
 Q

1

05
/0

6:
 Q

3

06
/0

7:
 Q

1

06
/0

7:
 Q

3

07
/0

8:
 Q

1

07
/0

8:
 Q

3

08
/0

9:
 Q

1

08
/0

9:
 Q

3

09
/1

0:
 Q

1

09
/1

0:
 Q

3

10
/1

1:
 Q

1

10
/1

1:
 Q

3

11
/1

2:
 Q

1

11
/1

2:
 Q

3

12
/1

3:
 Q

1

12
/1

3:
 Q

3

13
/1

4:
 Q

1

13
/1

4:
 Q

3

14
/1

5:
 Q

1

14
/1

5:
 Q

3

15
/1

6:
 Q

1

15
/1

6:
 Q

3

16
/1

7:
Q

1

16
/1

7:
Q

3

17
/1

8-
Q

1

17
/1

8-
Q

3

18
/1

9-
Q

1

18
/1

9-
Q

3

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

4.00

fte sick days/av fte Target

Sickness by Quarter

ft
e 

si
ck

 d
ay

s/
av

er
ag

e 
ft

e

Page 46


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Employee Benefits Platform
	6 Employer Supported Volunteering Policy
	Appendix - Worcester City Council ESVP draft policy

	7 Review of Local Conditions
	Appendix - Local Conditions - 2019  v0.2

	8 Health and Attendance Performance - 2018/19

